
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
April 2, 2015 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Richard Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: (None.) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, Meyers Nave et al. 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Gaylord Schaap at 6:31 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Director Schaap reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer moved to approve 
the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Lipinski requested that Item III-D (LAFCO 
recommendations) be removed from the Consent calendar for further discussion.  Director Holmer 
amended his motion to approve the Consent Calendar reflecting revised Minutes and the removal 
of Item III-D.  Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 5-0, except that Director Robb-Wilder 
abstained as to Item III-A (Minutes) as she was absent at the March 5 meeting.  The following 
items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the March 5, 2015 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  (None.) 
 


 


 1







 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (con't.)(6:33 p.m.) 
 


D. (7:34 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Approving and authorizing the President 
to sign off on the Sonoma Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) 
recommendations to 


 (1) Continue conducting elections for district representatives by mail; 
and 


 (2) Continue with the policy that one member representing 
independent special districts be a board member of a fire 
protection, community services, or life support district (Class I) and 
the other member be a board member of any other independent 
district 


Discussion and questions ensued.  Director Lipinski moved to approve and 
authorize the President to sign off on the LAFCO recommendations.  Director 
Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:37 p.m.) 
 


None. 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
A. (7:37 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 15-06, Accepting the Final Audit for the 


Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2014.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to table approval of the Audit until the 
May meeting.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   


 
B. (7:45 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Revising Stage I of the Water Shortage 


Contingency Plan in Response to California State Water Resources Control Board 
to Limit Outside Water to Two Days per Week.  The GM provided an overview of this 
item. Discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue.  
No action was taken.   


 
C. (7:28 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2015-16 Operating and Capital 


Improvement Budget.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Brief discussion 
ensued.   


 
D. (7:34 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 15-04, Authorizing the General 


Manager to Accept the Fiscal Year 2015 Capital Improvement Project and to Sign 
and Record a Notice of Completion.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board 
questions and discussion ensued.  Director Wikle moved to approve Resolution 15-04, 
Authorizing the General Manager to Accept the Fiscal Year 2015 Capital Improvement 
Project and to Sign and Record a Notice of Completion.  Director Lipinski seconded.  
Motion carried 5-0. 


 
E. Discussion/Action re Resolution 15-07, Approval to Extend the Mt. Jackson Cell 


Tower Lease for 40 Years.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board questions 
and discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue.  
Director Wikle move to approve Resolution 15-07, Approving a Forty Year Extension of 
the Lease with Crown Castle for the Mt. Jackson Cell Tower Site and Authorizing the 
General Manager to Sign.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 


 
 
** At 7:48 p.m. the Board took a brief recess, and was back in session at 7:52 p.m. 
 


 2







 3


 


VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:52 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory Testing. 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville Rainfall 
5. 2015/2016 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Mt. Jackson Lease Extension 
9. ADA Water Rates 
11. Gantt Chart 
 
Board questions ensued. 
 
 


VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:02 p.m.) 


 
Director Lipinski announced that Spooners was sold. 
Director Wikle announced that Johnson's Beach was sold. 
Director Wikle announced that Riverkeeper Park was opening to the public, and holding an official 


event in May. 
Director Robb-Wilder announced that you could drink the water in Italy. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:04 p.m.) 
 
1. Prop 218 hearing and Budget hearing 
2. Drought update 
3. FY 2013-14 Audit 
4. CIP 2016 Award of Contract 
5. Labor negotiations 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 8:04 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (con't.)(6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:37 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.)*

		VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:52 p.m.)

		VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:02 p.m.)



		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:04 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
May 7, 2015, Regular Meeting  


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the April 2, 2015 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE 
 
A. Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 15-05, Adopting Water Rates for 


FY 2015-16 and Analysis of protests received (Est. time 20 min.)  
 
B. Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 15-08, Adopting the FY 2015-16 


Operating and Capital Improvement Budget (Est. time 15 min.)  
 


 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 30 min.) 
 
 A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
  District negotiator:  Glenn Berkheimer 
  Employee Organization:  Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE (con't.) 
 


C. Discussion/Action re Resolution 15-06, Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal 
Year Ending June 30, 2014 (Est. time 20 min.) 


 
D. Discussion/Action re Adoption of Resolution 15-09, Approving the Construction 


Project Budget and Awarding the Contract for the FY 2016 Capital Improvement 
Project. (Est. time 20 min.) 


 
E. Discussion/Action re Resolution 15-10, Revising Stage 1 Water Shortage 


Declaration (Est. time: 20 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re FY 2014-15 3rd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted Operations and 


Capital Expenditures and County Balances (Est. time 20 min.)  
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 
5 min.) 


 
 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 


 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (con't.)

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 7, 2015 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 WATER RATES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  


A.  Hold a public hearing on the proposed Fiscal Year 2015-2016 (FY6) Water 
Rates; 
B.  Approve Resolution 15-05 which establishes water rates for FY16, increasing 
the Base Rate, Water Usage Charge, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges by 3% 
and raises fees for District labor costs. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  Adopts water rates that will increase water sales revenues by 
approximately $60,000 to fund District operations and capital programs in FY16.    
 
DISCUSSION: 
Sweetwater Springs Water District’s current financial condition is good with one 
exception – lack of sustainable funding for ongoing capital improvements.   The 
District has adequate revenues to fund operations, and debt repayment is covered 
mostly by the annual Flat Charge that appears on the property tax bill and by the 
Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC).  In recent years, after payment of all other 
expenses, the District has had approximately $250,000 in revenues from water rates 
to contribute towards capital expenses.  This amount is too small to fund the capital 
programs needed by the District to bring its infrastructure up to standard.  The 
District has had funding support for its capital projects from the Russian River 
Redevelopment Committee (RRROC) and the Sonoma County Community 
Redevelopment Agency but that source of support has ended, other grant sources 
have not appeared, and capital projects are now funded solely by the District.     


There’s no question that the District’s infrastructure is substandard. Even with the 
capital programs of the past several years, the District averages approximately 150 
leaks per year (down from over 300 prior to the 2008 startup of capital 
improvements), 23% system losses, and requires many service interruptions to 
repair leaks.  Most of the facilities inherited by Sweetwater Springs Water District 
when it took over Citizen’s Utilities in 1992 were constructed in a haphazard manner 
and all of it needs replacing, except that replaced or constructed in the last twenty 
years.  The District’s 2014-19 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) is a “catch-up” 
CIP which aims to bring the District’s water system up to an acceptable standard, as 
measured by water quality, system leaks, system losses, and fire protection.  







Approval of FY16 Water Rates  2  
May 7, 2015 


Beyond the 2014-19 CIP, additional capital expenses will be needed to continue the 
catch up and to maintain the water system to an acceptable standard.     
To address this situation, in 2011 the Board directed Staff to investigate how to get 
to a funding level that will provide for a sustainable CIP.  Sustainable CIP funding is 
defined as at least $500,000 in a net capital funding (net operating funds minus debt 
payments not are not covered by the capital debt reduction charge revenue and the 
annual assessment) that can be transferred to the Capital Program.       
 
The proposed 3% rate increase being considered would follow the current rate 
structure which is based on the 2007 Rate Study.  That study recommended annual 
increases of up to 4% to the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges, and increases to 
the Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) to fully cover debt costs.  In 2011 several 
alternatives were investigated based on a financial planning model that forecast 
District finances through FY 2020.  That investigation and accompanying Board 
meetings recommended a series of relatively small (3%) annual increases to the 
Base Rate,  Water Usage Charges, and Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC).  The 
analysis showed that nine years of 3% increases would bring Capital Program 
funding to the target sustainable level.  The recommended FY16 3% increase will be 
the 5th year of 3% increases to those charges.   
 
Table 1 shows the proposed Base Rate, Water Usage and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charges for various customer classes and tiers.    Table 2 shows the effects of the 
proposed 3% rate increase on typical District water customers based on the various 
rate classes and median 90th percentile water use for those classes.  The table shows 
the effect on the FY15 water bills ($2.35 bimonthly for median single family 
residential).  
 
Observations: 
 


 The proposed water rates are rounded to the nearest 5 cents (this makes 
calculations and change making easier for staff).  That slightly increases the 
Tier 1, and Tier 3 charges, and slightly decreases the Tier 2 and Tier 4 and 
Base Rate charges.   


 
 The proposed rate increases are not in response to drought water sales 


reductions or increases to specifically encourage reducing water use.  The 
District's rate structure does include tiers that do encourage efficient use of 
water regardless of where we are in a drought cycle.  If water use continues 
to fall, the District will not achieve the desired increase in revenues, but we 
believe when the drought is over, water will return to near pre-drought levels 
and the continued program of small annual increases will have the desired 
effect of building capital funding to the $500,000 target.  


 
 The fee increases for District labor apply to fees charged for performing work 


for customers or others requiring work by District staff.  These haven't been 
changed since 2006 and reflect current actual costs for these labor categories.    


 







Approval of FY16 Water Rates  3  
May 7, 2015 


 
Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Rates for 2015-16 


Base Rate, Water Usage Rate, and Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
    Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4   


  


Water Usage Rate  $    1.35   $    2.65  $    4.00  $    5.80   


  
A.  Residential Single Family; no meter multiplier 


  Base Rate 


Tier 1  
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 2 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 3 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 4 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Capital Debt 
Reduction 


Charge 
(CDRC) 


Any meter 
size  $       57.95  8 20 80 >80 $10.60  


B.  Residential Multiple Family – Multiple Unit Multiplier is 0.55 for every extra unit; 
no meter multiplier; charges for 2-4 units below. 


Any meter 
size Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


2 units  $       89.82  12.4 31 124 >124              $16.43  


3 units  $     121.70  16.8 42 168 >168              $22.26  


4 units  $     153.57  21.2 53 212 >212 $28.09  


C.  Commercial and Public – meter multiplier based on meter size; no multiple unit 
multiplier. 


Meter Size 
(in) Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


0.625  $       57.95  8 20 80 >80  $10.60  


1  $     144.88  20 50 200 >200  $26.50  


1.5  $     289.75  40 100 400 >400  $53.00  


2  $     463.60  64 160 640 >640  $84.80  
 
D.  Fees for District Labor: $75/hour maintenance worker; $125/hour with backhoe and 
operator; $75/hour inspection services.   


 


 
 


Table 2.  3% Water Rate Increase Effect on Typical Water Users' Water Bills by Class  (100 
cubic feet (Units), FY15-16 


  
Single Family 
Residential 


Multi-Family 
Residential, 2 Units Commercial 5/8 Meter 


Number of Accounts 3092 252 132 
  Median 90% Median 90% Median 90% 
Median Water Use 7 22 12 32 15 82


Median Bill Current  $      75.65   $      115.85   $  118.75  $   171.48  $     95.15   $       350.35  


Median Bill Proposed  $      78.00   $      119.15   $  122.45  $   176.28  $     97.90   $       362.75  


Bimonthly Difference  $        2.35   $          3.30   $     3.70   $       4.80  $       2.75   $         12.40  


% Increase 3.1% 2.8% 3.1% 2.8% 2.9% 3.5%







Approval of FY16 Water Rates  4  
May 7, 2015 


 
 
 


Proposition 218 Notice 
 
Notice for proposed water rate increases were mailed to all property owners by 
March 23, 2015. 3,504 notices were mailed.  The Notice provided for an increase to 
the Base Rate, Water Usage and Capital Debt Reduction Charges of up to 3% for FY 
2016 and included the proposed rate schedules and a protest form.   At the time of 
this agenda report writing (April 29, 2015), 238 protests had been received.  Below 
are specific comments received with the protest votes: 
 
Please reduce your labor costs to be more efficient.  We are all struggling to live within our budgets. 
 
I'm on a fixed budget and can't afford this! 
 
Spendthrift! 
 
We are just summer residences, why should we pay the same as all year residence! I would like to know if 
this ballot really helps.  I don't think so!!! 
 
This is the 4th year of drought.  Why not make changes that provide incentives for conservation?  Raise 
the usage rate more instead of the base rate. 
 
Are these truly counted?  Every year I protest and every year the rates go up.  We have HORRIBLE water 
that can't be drunk.  We are only summer residents.  We should not be made to pay more when we only 
use it 3months a year.  It's wrong! 
 
Across-the-board fee increases make life easier for YOU but not for low-income, responsible customers.  
We all want clean, abundant water sources and many of us are already doing our part to achieve this.  Here 
are the things I'm doing to help you: I live alone, flush my toilets only every 3rd use, limit my showers, 
keep no lawn or garden, water container plants from a kitchen bucket of run-off water, don't use my 
garbage disposal, wash my car only once a year.  What are you doing besides closing your budget gap by 
beginning with a total dollar amount then just dividing it?  You must make an effort to equalize 
assessments by increasing the percentages of the BIG CONSUMERS, not the little ones. 
 
That sounds like a pretty big salary increase! 
 
This is a summer cabin and only used May 30-Oct. 1.  Very little water is used. There should be no reason 
to increase the water rate at the above address! No plants, washing machine, etc.!! 
 
One of my compaints is there are several leaks on Woodland and Sunset Aves. They are always leaking 
which is a waste of water.  They are fixed temporarily by a bandaid approach.  When is Capital 
Improvement (cut off, ed) 
 
Why do I protest you ask.  My home is not protected by a fire hydrant.  2 homes have burned to the ground 
in the last 6 years due to no hydrants near by - an outrage! 
 
This is only a summer cabin fo our family. 
 
Excerpt - I find the labor fee increases in REsolution 15-05 to be exorbitant: 50% wage hike for inspectors 
and maintenance workers, and 15% wage hike for backhoe operators.  The fact that these increase are 







Approval of FY16 Water Rates  5  
May 7, 2015 


convenient multiples of 15% makes it clear to me, in my experience as a project manager, that these are 
unconsidered numbers that are not backed up by real costs or thorough research data on labor shortages... 
 
Only protesting the 50% increase in District Labor and Inspection from $50 to $75 per hour, and the 25% 
increase in fees for backhoe and operator from $100 to $125 per hour.  Increases are not substantiated.  
 
Very limited income, cannot afford. 
 
 
 
 







Resolution No. 15-05 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING WATER RATES FOR FISCAL YEAR 


2015-2016 
  


WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 31007, the District Board of Directors is 
authorized to establish rates and charges sufficient to pay for operating expenses, 
provide for repairs and depreciation of works and pay for the principal and interest on 
debt; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 31025, the District shall fix and through the 
General Manager collect water rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on the 2007 Rate Study conducted by Brelje and Race (“2007 Rate 
Study”) and other information provided to the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors 
has evaluated the anticipated revenues and expenditures necessary to operate the 
District and cover the costs of providing water services to customers of the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, in March of 2015 District staff sent formal notices of the public hearing on 
the proposed rate structure for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 (FY16) in accordance with the 
requirements of Article XIII-D, Section 6(b) of the California Constitution, and has 
included other rate information on the District’s website; and   
 
WHEREAS, the formal notices advised ratepayers and property owners of the new 
proposed rate structure and the process for submitting protests to said rate structure to 
the District, in accordance with the requirements of Article XIII-D, Section 6(b) of the 
California Constitution; and   
 
WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors conducted a public hearing on May 7, 2015  
to hear public testimony on the proposed water rate structure for FY16, and heard all 
testimony regarding the proposed water rates and accepted all related comments and 
protests for FY16; and 
 
WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the public hearing the District Clerk tabulated the 
number of protests and reported that there was not a majority protest of the proposed 
water rate structure for FY16; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on the evidence and testimony provided at the time of the public 
hearing on this matter, the Board of Directors finds as follows: 
 


1.  The proposed rate increases set forth in Exhibit “A” follow the 
recommendations of the 2007 Rate Study that was commissioned by the District 
Board of Directors as a basis for restructuring water rates commencing in May 
2009. 
 
2.  Pursuant to the analysis and recommendations contained in the 2007 Rate 
Study, the proposed water rates are directly related to the District’s actual cost of 
providing water service and are not levied for general revenue purposes. 
 
3.  Based on the 2007 Rate Study, the proposed water rates needed to cover 
those costs of operation, repair, and maintenance costs of the District's water 
system are neither excessive nor discriminatory. 
 







Resolution 15-05, FY 2015-2016 Water Rates 2 
May 7, 2015 
 


4.  Proper notice of the proposed rate structure and notice of a public hearing on 
the matter has been given to all ratepayers and owners of identified parcels 
within the District, in accordance with applicable law. 
 
5.  The proposed water rates, as described in Exhibit "A", attached, were not 
protested by a majority of the persons eligible to protest said rate structure.  


 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District adopts the following: 
 
Section 1. Base Rate, Water Usage, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges.  
Effective on all bills issued on or after July 1, 2015, the bi-monthly Base Rate, Water 
Usage Rate, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges shall be as shown in Table 1 of 
Exhibit “A”, attached. 


Section 2. Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause of phrase or 
this Resolution is for any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
the Resolution.  The District Board of Directors hereby declares that it would have 
passed this Resolution and each section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase 
thereof irrespective of the fact that one or more sections, subsections, sentences, 
clauses or phrases may be held invalid or unconstitutional. 


 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on May 7, 
2015, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Gaylord Schaap 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 







Resolution 15-05, FY 2015-2016 Water Rates 3 
May 7, 2015 
 
Exhibit A 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Water Service Base Rate, Usage Charges and 


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
 


Effective on all bills issued on or after July 1, 2015 
 
The rates indicated below shall be effective on all bills issued on or after July 1, 
2015, and these fees, rates and charges shall supercede and replace those in 
Resolution 14-05.   
 
 
Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Rates for 2015-16 


Base Rate, Water Usage Rate, and Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
    Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4   


  


Water Usage Rate  $    1.35  $    2.65  $    4.00  $    5.80   


  
A.  Residential Single Family; no meter multiplier 


  Base Rate 


Tier 1  
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 2 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 3 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 4 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Capital Debt 
Reduction 


Charge 
(CDRC) 


Any meter 
size  $       57.95  8 20 80 >80 $10.60 


B.  Residential Multiple Family – Multiple Unit Multiplier is 0.55 for every extra unit; 
no meter multiplier; charges for 2-4 units below. 


Any meter 
size Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


2 units  $       89.82  12.4 31 124 >124              $16.43 


3 units  $     121.70  16.8 42 168 >168              $22.26 


4 units  $     153.57  21.2 53 212 >212 $28.09 


C.  Commercial and Public – meter multiplier based on meter size; no multiple unit 
multiplier. 


Meter Size 
(in) Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


0.625  $       57.95  8 20 80 >80  $10.60 


1  $     144.88  20 50 200 >200  $26.50 


1.5  $     289.75  40 100 400 >400  $53.00 


2  $     463.60  64 160 640 >640  $84.80 
 
D.  Fees for District Labor: $75/hour maintenance worker; $125/hour with backhoe and 
operator; $75/hour inspection services.   


 







Resolution 15-05, FY 2015-2016 Water Rates 4 
May 7, 2015 
 
 
USER CLASSIFICATIONS. For the purposes of assessing water 
charges provided for in this exhibit, user classifications shall be as 
follows: 
1. Residential Single Family: Applicable to all accounts serving one 
detached dwelling unit. 
2. Residential Multiple Family: Applicable to all accounts serving two or more 
living units, as defined by District Policy 3010.70. 
3. Commercial and Public: Applicable, without regard to meter size, to all 
accounts serving mercantile buildings, motels and other short term lodging 
establishments, office buildings, institutional buildings, parks, schools, churches, 
and other commercial and public agency establishments. 





		Item V-A - FY2015-2016 New Water Rates

		Item V-A.1 - Resolution 15-05 - Water Rates for FY16

		Sweetwater Springs Water District

		Water Service Base Rate, Usage Charges and Capital Debt Reduction Charge








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 7, 2015 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 OPERATING AND CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT BUDGET 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  A. Hold a public hearing on the proposed Fiscal Year 2015-


2016 (FY16) Budget;  
B.  Approve Resolution 15-08 which approves the FY16 
Budget 


 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  The FY16 Budget includes FY16 expenses of $3.7 million to be paid 
for by revenues of $3.1 million plus projected use of reserves of $600,000 in FY16.  The 
Budget also includes approximately $800,000 in funds expected to be obligated in FY16 
for the FY17 Capital Improvement Program through the award of the construction 
contract, but expended in FY17.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The FY16 Budget agenda report comes with several attachments: 


 
 Resolution 15-08 which approves the FY16 Budget 
 Exhibit A. FY16 Budget Report which includes Attachment A. FY16 Detailed 


Budget which is the line item budget document with complete budget detail.   
 
The Draft FY16 Budget was first presented and discussed at the March Board Meeting 
with a followup discussion at the April Board Meeting.  The FY16 Budget presentation 
came with several assumptions/results:  
 


 Base Rate, Water Usage, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges are increased by 
3%. 


 Flat water sales – the current year water sales have been depressed because of 
the drought and we expect a similar level of sales for the coming fiscal year 
(FY16).  


 Water sales revenue projection a 3% increase over the FY15 End of Year 
projected amount. 







Approval of FY16 Budget  2  
May 7, 2015 


 Salaries are increased to match the expected outcome of the Union Memorandum 
of Understanding negotiations and that impact on the contracts for 
nonrepresented employees.  The General Manager is funded at 70% to reflect 
partial service retirement and the Administration Manager is funded at 80%. 


 The Budget includes prefunding retired employee health costs.     
 Supplies and Services were scrutinized to reflect actual expected costs and are 


budgeted to be approximately $62,000 less than FY15 Budgeted.      
 Fixed Asset Expenditures include the purchase of a new truck at $50,000.  Tanks 


and Facilities includes expenses for a liner and a foundation for the Park Avenue 
Tank.        


 
The transfer to the Capital Improvement Revenue Fund (CIRF) is $320,000 which is a 
reflection of the effect of expected decreased water sales due to the extended drought. 
 
With the Capital section of the Budget, comparisons between FY15 and FY16 are less 
meaningful because completely different capital projects are undertaken from year to 
year.  The FY16 Budget includes the FY 2016 CIP which is fully funded by the District 
and expected to be completed within the fiscal year.   


 
The FY 2017 CIP is also included in this budget because the project will be designed this 
winter and construction funds for this project will likely be obligated in May or June 
2016, during the FY16 budget year.  The construction expense of the FY 2017 CIP is not 
included in Figure 1 of the Budget report because only a small fraction of the FY 2017 
CIP expenses will be expended in FY16 (design costs).  
 
District Reserves 
 
The FY16 Budget includes the District Reserve Policy approved in September 2009:   
 


 Operating Budget Cash Reserve – a reserve based on 15% of the Operating 
Budget expenses to provide for prompt payment of operating expenses at the 
start of each fiscal year. 


 Operating Reserve – 25% of the Operating Budget expenses for dealing with 
economic uncertainty, and emergencies and disaster-related expenses.   


 Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of all payments for principal and interest on all 
District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


 Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 
 


The FY16 Budget shows a Policy Reserve of $1,188,939 and $1,253,616 in Reserves 
Above Policy at the end of the fiscal year.  Approximately $800,000 of the Reserves 
Above Policy are obligated for construction of the FY17 CIP so actual end of year 
reserves on hand will be approximately $2.1 million.   
   
In summary, the FY16 Budget shows a funding plan will allow the District to accomplish 
its mission of providing good quality water to District customers, fund a major capital 
improvement project, and end the year in good financial shape.   







Resolution No. 15-08 
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING THE FY 2015-16 OPERATING 


AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET  
  
 


 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District hereby adopts the attached FY 2015-16 Operating and Capital 
Improvement Budget.  
 


      
 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of 
the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, 
at a meeting held on May 7, 2015, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Gaylord Schaap 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 







Exhibit A 


  
 
 


Sweetwater Springs 
Water District 


 
Annual Operating & Capital 


Improvement Budget 
 


2015-16 Fiscal Year 
(For the period July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016) 


 
Board of Directors 


 
Gaylord Schaap, President 
Tim Lipinski, Vice President 


Sukey Robb-Wilder, Financial Coordinator 
Victoria Wikle  


Richard Holmer 
 


General Manager 
Steve Mack 


 







FY 2015-16 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Annual Operating & Capital Improvement Budget 


2015-16 Fiscal Year 
Summary 


 
In Fiscal Year 2015-2016 (FY16) Sweetwater Springs Water District has budgeted 
operating expenses of $1.7 million and capital improvement expenses of $3.1 million. 
Figures 1 and 2 respectively show the distribution of these expenses and sources of 
funds to pay for these expenses.  Note that sources of funds include approximately 
$600,000 from District Reserves for capital improvements.   These figures do not include 
expenses or sources of funds for construction of the 2017 CIP for which the construction 
contract will be awarded in FY16 but the funds not expended until FY17 (approximately 
$1.0 million). 
 


Figure 1. FY 2016 Expenses
Total = $3.7 Million


(does not include FY17 CIP construction)


Capital Improvements
27%


Salary and Benefits
31%


Debt Repayment
28%


Services and Supplies
14%


Figure 2.  FY16 Sources of Funds to Pay for Expenses
Total = $3.7 Million


$3.1 Million Revenues + $600,000 Reserves


Base Rate Charge
38%


Water Usage Charge
15%


CDRC
7%


Assessments
20%


Interest
1%


Rent, Other
3%


Reserves
16%


 2 







FY 2015-16 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


Table 1 is a summary of the FY16 Budget which is described and shown in detail in the 
following pages.  The FY16 Budget is similar in form and content to prior years’ budgets.  
The FY16 Budget includes the fifth year of 3% increases for the Base Rate and Water 
Usage Charges and the third year of a 3% increase to the Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge which are designed to develop sustainable capital project funding.     


 


TABLE 1.  FY 2015-16 OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET SUMMARY


 


FY 13-14
FINAL (CASH)*  


FY14-15 
BUDGET 
REVISED


FY 14-15
Projected  


 FY 15-16
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY16-FY15 
Budgets 


REVENUE
1 OPERATING REVENUE


2 4031 · Water Bill Revenue


3 4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Cha 246,360 253,947            253,947             261,565          7,618           


4 4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,351,512 1,393,127        1,393,127         1,434,921       41,794         


5 620,586 570,000           570,000            587,100          17,100         


6 4031.1. · Total Water Sales 2,218,459 1,963,127        1,963,127 2,022,021 58,894         


7 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,218,459 2,217,074 2,217,074 2,283,586 66,512         


8 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 107,482 113,850 123,450 110,982 (2,868)          


9 Total Income 2,325,941 2,330,924 2,340,524 2,394,568 63,644         


10 EXPENSES
11 OPERATING EXPENSES


12 770,270 813,752 812,025 837,210 23,458         


13 302,412 303,431 303,431 327,417 23,986         


14 Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,072,681 1,117,183 1,115,456 1,164,627 47,444         


15 Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 502,800 597,841 584,915 535,780 (62,061)        


16 Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,575,482 1,715,024 1,700,371 1,700,407 (14,617)        


17 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $750,459 $615,900 $640,153 $694,161 78,261$       


18 Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 13,766 59,000 59,000 72,000 13,000         


19 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 948,278 553,947 573,947 621,565 67,618         


20 SURPLUS/DEFICIT -211,585 2,953 7,206 596 (2,357)          


21 CAPITAL BUDGET
22 TOTAL REVENUE 2,181,390 2,035,947 2,080,947 2,038,565 2,618           


23 EXPENSES
24 TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,059,252 970,822 970,822 1,035,106 64,284         


25 Total Capital Expenses 1,122,138            2,037,346        1,097,346         2,030,400       (6,946)          


26 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,181,390 3,008,168 2,068,168 3,065,506 57,338         


27 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 0 -972,221 12,779 -1,026,941 (54,720)        


28 412,758 348,078 372,331 349,055
977              


29    Total District Policy Reserves 1,178,715            1,178,715        1,188,939         1,188,939       10,224         


30 TOTAL Reserves EOY 3,683,403            2,594,683        3,517,335         2,442,556       (152,127)      


31    Reserves Above (below) Policy 2,504,688            1,415,968        2,328,396         1,253,616       (162,352)      


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage 
Charges + Other


Net Capital Funding


Total Salary


Total Benefits


 3 







FY 2015-16 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 4 


2015-16 Fiscal Year (FY16) Budget 
 
The annual budget of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) allows the 
District to accomplish its mission which is to provide its customers with quality 
water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective manner and to 
manage District resources for the benefit of the community and environment. The 
District achieves its mission of producing good quality water by pumping Russian River 
underflow from five wells – 3 located at the Guerneville El Bonita well site and 2 located 
at the Monte Rio well site.  That water is then treated in two separate treatment facilities 
at the Highlands site for Guerneville and at the Monte Rio well site for Monte Rio and 
environs and distributed through approximately 68 miles of distribution pipes and 3500 
service laterals of varying lengths, and stored in 26 tanks and reservoirs.   This system is 
managed and its operation administered by the District staff of 10 full time employees.  
The District has an aggressive capital improvement program aimed at maintaining and 
improving the capital infrastructure to industry standards to deliver high quality water, 
reduce system water losses, and maintain adequate system pressure and fireflow.  The 
annual budget identifies the revenues and expenses that accomplish these tasks. 
 
The FY16 Budget follows the format established in prior years and includes the 
fifth consecutive year of a 3% increase to the Base Rate and Water Usage 
Charges, and the third consecutive year of a 3% increase to the Capital Debt 
Reduction Charge. 
 
3% increase to the Base Rate, Water Usage Charges, and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge:   Most of the revenues for the FY15 Budget come from water rates paid in 
bimonthly bills by District customers (Figure 2).  In 2011 District staff did a 
comprehensive multi-year analysis to show that with small annual increases in rates the 
District can develop sustainable funding for needed capital projects to maintain District 
facilities once the current catch up capital improvement program is completed.  The 
financial analysis showed that annual 3% increases over nine years will build into 
$500,000 available annually for capital projects.   This is the fifth year of planned annual 
3% rate increases designed to achieve the sustainable capital improvement program.  
More information on the District’s water rates and a water rate calculator can be found 
on the District’s website at www.sweetwatersprings.com.   
 
Net Capital Funding will be approximately $350,000.  Net Capital Funding is the term 
used for estimating the amount of funding developed in the Operating and Capital 
Improvement Budget for funding capital projects (line 28 in Table 1).  It is the sum of the 
operating budget surplus, annual assessments, CDRC, and capital interest minus total 
debt payments.  Net Capital Funding is budgeted to be flat because of depressed water 
sales from drought--related water use restrictions. We believe that Net Capital Funding 
should be near $500,000 for a sustainable capital improvement program for the District.  
 
The current drought has a big impact on the budget planning in this and future years and 
that shows up in our Net Capital Funding amount.  Water sales will continue to be 
depressed because of the California State Water Resources Control Board direction to 
keep water use at 80% of 2013 levels.  Water use in FY 2015 is close to that level, we 
expect that water use in the coming fiscal year will be at a similar level, and that a 3% 
rate increase will result in a 3% revenue increase in water sales.  We expect that once 
the drought restrictions are eased (we need some rain for that), water sales revenue will 
increase and the District will move toward reaching the $500,000 net capital funding 
goal.   



http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/





FY 2015-16 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 5 


 
 
FY 2016 CIP and FY 2017 CIP (Table 2):  The FY16 Capital Budget includes the 2016 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP), which is replacement 3,900 ft of existing mainline 
and 75 services along Canyon 1 Road, Memory Lane, and Memory Park Road in Rio 
Nido, estimated to have a  FY16 cost of approximately $935,000 including construction 
costs, and inspection and construction management.   
 
The FY16 Budget also includes the 2017 CIP which is replacement of 2900 ft of mainline 
on  Park Ave. and McLane Rd, 37 services and looping two deadend lines, and 
approximately 440 lf of main line Cherry St. (13 services).  The FY17 CIP projects are 
included in the FY16 Budget because design will happen in FY16 and the contracts will 
be awarded at the end of FY16; however, most expenses for the project (estimated to 
cost $1,070,000 in total) will occur in FY17.   
 
District Reserve Policy:   The District Reserve Policy was approved in September 
2009.   The Reserve Policy allows the District to gauge its financial health and 
adequately plan for its future, and allows ratepayers to follow this planning.  The District 
Reserve Policy has the following components: 


 
 Operating Budget Cash Reserve - 15% of the annual Operating Budget 


expenses to provide for prompt payment of operating expenses at the start of the 
fiscal year. 


 Operating Reserve – 25% of the Operating Budget for unanticipated expenses 
for economic downturn or other economic crisis, or for dealing with emergencies 
and disaster-related expenses. 


 Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of all payments for principal and interest on all 
District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


 Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 


 
The sum of all district funds is shown in the budget as Total Reserves End of Year 
(EOY).  This is the sum of the District discretionary funds, listed in the budget at the end 
of the year.  The difference between Total Reserves EOY and Total District Policy 
Reserves is Reserves Above District Policy.  The District goal is to keep this number 
positive.  The amount above the District Policy Reserve is the amount the District has for 
future capital projects.  The Reserves Above District Policy is a good measure of where 
we are in funding an ongoing capital program.  The FY16 Budget projects that the 
District will have approximately $1.25 million in Reserves Above District Policy at the end 
of FY16, including the obligation for the FY17 CIP.  This means cash on hand in the 
Reserves Above District Policy will be approximately $2.5 Million at the end of FY16.   
 
District Reserves help fund the CIP.  Net capital funding, the funding available for 
capital projects,  is expected to be approximately $350,000 for FY16 yet the FY16 CIP 
will cost approximately $1 million.  The difference is made up by District reserves.  The 
District intends to continue an aggressive CIP until reserves near the District Reserve 
Policy level, at which time the annual CIP will need to be skipped to build total reserves 
up.  At current levels of reserves we expect that the annual CIP will need to be skipped 
in FY 2018.   
 
Other Financial Assumptions/Highlights of the FY15 Budget include: 
 







FY 2015-16 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 6 


 As noted above, we expect water sales to be similar to FY 2015 which is 
depressed below historical levels because of the drought water use restrictions 
imposed by the State Water Resources Control Board. 


 Salaries are increased by 2% in anticipation of an approved, new Memorandum 
of Understanding with District employees and contracts for nonrepresented 
employees will increase in a similar manner.  The actual changes will be known 
after the conclusion of the currently ongoing collective bargaining.   


 The transfer to the Capital Improvement Revenue Fund (CIRF) is budgeted at 
$320,000 in FY16. 


 
Line Item Highlights of the FY15 Budget: 
 
The FY16 Operating Budget provides for ongoing costs consistent with previous 
years’ expenditures, except where identified below. 
 
The operating budget encompasses the “expenditures related to the operation, 
maintenance and repair of water facilities”, as well as the billing, collections, accounting, 
fiscal management and other overall administration. 
 
Water Bill Revenue line items have been adjusted to reflect the 3% increases on 
projected sales revenue in the Base Rate, Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) and 
Water Usage Charges based on flat water sales.  revenue also includes a 3% increase.  
Operating interest is continued at a relatively low amount to reflect continuing lower 
interest on deposited funds. 
 
Under Expenses, Salaries are budgeted to increase approximately 2% in anticipation of 
a new Memorandum of Understanding with represented employees currently in 
negotiations.  Benefits are budgeted to increase approximately $23,000 because of a 
increases in medical and workers comp insurance costs.  Salaries and Benefits are a 
major District expense – approximately 70% of the FY16 Operating Budget expenses. 
 
Total Supplies and Services are approximately $60,000 lower than the FY15 approved 
revised budget.   Maintenance/Repair – Facilities is a big cost item in Supplies and 
Services and has been decreased because the large unanticipated well rehabilitation 
costs in FY15 will likely not be repeated.   Governmental Fees and Professional 
Services are budgeted to remain flat in the coming fiscal year.  Electricity is a big 
expense item and is budgeted to be the same as FY15.   
 
Fixed Asset Expenditures is at a similar level to FY15 because the purchase of a new 
truck is included.  There are also substantial expenses for Tank/Facilities Sites to 
replace the chlorination system for the Monte Rio System and a tank liner at the Park 
Avenue Tank. 
 
The Operating Budget has a surplus of approximately $694,000 which is transferred as 
revenue to the Capital Improvement Budget as Capital Improvement Revenue Fund 
(CIRF) ($320,000) Building Fund ($15,000), In-House Construction Fund ($25,000), and 
CDRC revenue ($261,565).   
 
The FY15 Capital Budget major expenses are the FY 2016 CIP (estimated cost 
$935,000) and FY 2017 CIP (estimated cost $1,070,000), described above and in 
Table 2. 
 







FY 2015-16 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 7 


Capital Interest revenue is estimated conservatively to reflect expected continuing low 
interest rates this coming year. 
 
Capital Debt is a major expense item – approximately $1.0 million and 27% of total 
District annual expenses.  District Capital Debt includes: 
 


 General Obligation (GO) Bonds – Approximately $1.6 million remain in the USDA 
bonds that were approved to purchase the District and make needed capital 
improvements, and refinanced in part in 2013 and 2014.  Paid off in 2054.  
Annual payment - $64,284.   


 Cap One Bond – The District refinanced the first 20 years of the GO Bonds in 
September 2013.  Paid off in 2033, the FY16 payment is $566,508.    
Remaining principal is $7,553,000. 


 State Loans - two loans for approximately $3 million which were approved in 
1995-96 for needed improvements.  Paid off in 2021-22.  Annual payment - 
$170,168.50.  Remaining principal is $1,185,756. 


 Private Placement Loan.  $3 million loan acquired in 2008 for needed capital 
improvements.  Paid off in 2028.  Annual payment - $234,012.  Remaining 
principal is $2,432,440. 


 
District Reserves and Funds and Loan Balances show the District’s continuing 
healthy financial picture.   
 
As discussed above reserve balances are a good measure of the health of the District’s 
finances.  For FY16, District Policy Reserves are at $1,188,939 and Reserves Above 
District Policy at the end of the year are $1,253,616.   This includes the obligation for the 
FY 2017 CIP, so actual cash on hand reserves at the end of FY16 will be approximately 
$2.3 million.   
 
The detailed FY16 Budget is included as Attachment A.   
 
 


Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2014-2015 Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
2016    


  
Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace approximately 3,900 ft of existing mainline 
and 75 services along Canyon 1 Rd., Memory Ln., Memory Park Rd $890,000


  


2017 
Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 2900 lf of main line on Park Ave. 
and McLane, 37 services.  Loop two deadend lines. $688,000


 Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 lf of main line, 13 services.   $126,000


 . $814,000


 2015-2016 Totals $1,704,000
 





		Item V-B - FY16 Budget

		Item V-B.1 - RES 15-08 Appr FY 16 Budget

		Item V-B.2 - FY16 Budget Report

		Board of Directors

		Sukey Robb-Wilder, Financial Coordinator

		General Manager



		Steve Mack

		Sweetwater Springs Water District

		2015-16 Fiscal Year (FY16) Budget










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 7, 2015 
 
 Subject: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RESOLUTION 15-06, ACCEPTING THE FINAL 


AUDIT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2014 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 Approve Resolution 15-06, Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 


2014. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 (Preparation of the FY 13-14 Audit cost $7,950.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


This item was tabled at the April meeting so that the Board could have time to read the 
management report.  Please refer to the April meeting materials for this item. 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RESOLUTION 15-09, AWARDING 
THE CONTRACT FOR THE 2016 CIP 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 15-09 which conditionally 
awards the 2016 CIP construction contract to the apparent low bidder Team 
Ghilotti, Inc. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The Engineer’s Estimate for the 2016 CIP was $971,000 
not including contingencies; apparent low bid amount is $849,498.00.         
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Bids were opened for the 2016 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) which 
includes replacement 3,900 ft of existing mainline and 75 services along Canyon 
1 Road, Memory Lane, and Memory Park Road in Rio Nido at 2 pm on April 30.  
The apparent low bidder was Team Ghilotti for a cost of $849,498.00.   The 
second low bidder was Piazza Construction at $915,433.00 Coastland 
Engineering is checking the references and other supporting documentation for 
this bidder.  If those check out I will prepare an appropriate agenda report with 
accompanying resolution so that the District can award the contract at the May 
7 meeting.    





		MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2015 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 7, 2015 
  
SUBJECT: DECLARATION OF STAGE I WATER SHORTAGE 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 15-10 which continues and revises Stage 
I of the District's Water Shortage Contingency Plan with certain water use restrictions 
with the goal of 16% reduction in water production, based on the California State Water 
Resources Control Board (State Board) Resolution and regulations requiring 
implementation of Water Shortage Contingency Plans and certain mandatory water 
conservation measures.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  A 16% reduction in water sales would have approximately a $100,000 
reduction in District revenues if done for the 270 day period of the State Board 
resolution. There would be additional, relatively small District expenses associated with 
the water conservation effort. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the August 7, 2014 Board meeting the District Board passed Resolution 14-14 
which implemented the then current State Board regulations requiring the District to 
enact the appropriate level of its Water Shortage Contingency Plan to achieve a 20% 
reduction in water production compared to the same month in 2013 and implement 
certain mandatory water conservation measures.  The State Board resolution and 
attached regulations include the following mandatory restrictions: 


 The application of potable water to any driveway or sidewalk.  
 Using potable water to water outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes runoff to 


adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private and public walkways, roadways, 
parking lots or structures.  


 Using a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor vehicle, unless the hose 
is fitted with a shut-off nozzle.  


 Using potable water in a fountain or decorative water feature, unless the water is 
recirculated. Recycled water is not mandated, but encouraged for fountain use.  


 


Resolution 14-14 put the District into Stage 1 of the Water Shortage Contingency 
Plan and the response by District customers resulted in a production reduction of 
approximately 14% through March 2015.   


In March and April of this year, the State has taken several actions that extend their 
drought regulations.  The State Board reaffirmed the water use restrictions to 







Declaration of Stage I Drought  2  
May 7, 2015 


achieve 20% reductions in water use by urban water suppliers in March and in early 
April Governor Brown increased the reduction to 25% but stated the reduction 
program should recognize programs that have been doing water conservation all 
along.  In the latest version of the State Board regulations, the District will be 
required to reduce its water production by 16% compared to 2013.  The State Board 
direction also includes some new water use restrictions: 


 Urban water suppliers must now limit the number of days per week that 
customers can irrigate outdoors. The limit must either be specified in their 
drought contingency plans; or if their plan contains no specific limit, irrigation is 
limited to no more than two days per week.  


 
 Irrigating turf or ornamental landscapes during and 48 hours following 


measurable precipitation is prohibited. 
 Water agencies will also be required to notify customers when they are aware 


of leaks that are within the customer’s control. 


 Restaurants and other food service establishments can only serve water to 
customers on request; and 


 Operators of hotels and motels must provide guests with the option of 
choosing not to have towels and linens laundered daily and prominently 
display notice of this option.  


These regulations are currently a proposal; the State Board will meet on May 5-6, 
2015 to consider approval of the proposed approach. 


Table A-2 shows the District's Water Shortage Contingency Plan stages from the 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP).  Stage I is appropriate for a reduction 
of 15-25%.      


 
Table A-2 


Emergency Response Stages and Reduction Goals 


Shortage Condition Stage Customer Reduction 
Goal 


Type of Rationing 
Program 


15 – 25% I 25% Voluntary 
26 – 35% II 35% Mandatory 
36 – 50% III 50% or > Mandatory 


 


The biggest compliance issue appears to be introducing turf watering restrictions into 
Stage I of the District's Water Shortage Contingency Plan.  Staff recommend adding 
a restriction of 3 days per week outside watering of turn and ornamental plants with 
customers choosing which 3 days to water.  This will be in compliance with State 
Board direction and send the message to customers to be careful with outside 
watering.  Our service area is relatively small and we should become aware of 
customers who are not following the 3 day per week approach.   


 


Exhibit A to Resolution 15-10 is revised from Resolution 14-14 to add the additional 
restrictions expected to be required by the State.   This plan is based on staff 
experience of working in the conservation field and discussions with SCWA staff of 







Declaration of Stage I Drought  3  
May 7, 2015 


what is available for regional programs.  Because of the decentralized nature of this 
conservation effort, possible changes in direction from the State, and the current 
lack of an overall regional coordination of regional water conservation, the Plan must 
be considered subject to change.  As we find better ways to achieve results, we 
would implement those better ways. 


Observations: 


 The easiest (at least mathematically) way to save water is to reduce system 
leaks which is outside the conservation effort required by the State.  We have 
direct control over that effort - in that regard the District is moving forward 
with its capital projects and had recently ordered the purchase of correlator 
equipment which will allow District staff to proactively look for non-surfacing 
leaks in the distribution system.     


 The District's Water Shortage Contingency Plan is short on details for Stage I.  
In the revision of the Urban Water Management Plan which is due in July 
2016, that part of the plan should be expanded to include the experience of 
this drought.   


 


 







Resolution 15-10 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT REVISING 


RESTRICTIONS IN THE STAGE I WATER SHORTAGE PROGRAM 
 


WHEREAS, the California State Water Resources Board adopted Resolution 2014-0038 
calling for an overall 20% reduction in statewide water use and enacting certain outside 
watering restrictions in July 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, at its August 7,2014 meeting the District Board adopted Resolution 14-14 
which complied with the State Board Direction and District customers have responded 
with an overall reduction of 14% in water production; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Statewide drought is continuing and the California State Water 
Resources Board has adopted a new resolution calling for an overall 25% reduction in 
statewide water use and added certain  additional water use restrictions in May 2015; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, in this revised statewide program which recognizes conservation 
achievements based on water agency historical performance and the District has been 
assigned a 16% reduction target based on 2013 water production; and 
 
WHEREAS, the reservoirs in the Russian River system and the flows in the River are 
low and projections indicate that conditions will deteriorate further later in the summer 
and fall of 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the District’s and all regional water purveyors’ interest that a 
cooperative effort be developed to address the water shortage situation in the Russian 
River system and statewide; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District adopted the 2010 Urban Water Conservation Plan (the "Plan") 
by Resolution 11-25 on October 6, 2011, which includes a water shortage contingency 
element: and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plan's voluntary and mandatory rationing stages may be triggered by a 
water supply shortage; and  
 
WHEREAS, the California State Water Resources Board (State Board) Resolutions find 
that a water supply shortage exists and directs the District to enact its Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan to the level that includes the mandatory measures; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Plan has a three stage response plan and provides that Stage I level 
should be declared when the conservation goal target is between 15-25%; and 
 
WHEREAS, Stage I conservation by District customers has achieved the conservation 
amount directed by the State yet the Program needs to be amended to included the 
added measures required by the State; and  
 
WHEREAS, the State Board added requirements include: 
 


 Limiting the number of days per week that customers can irrigate 
outdoors.  


 
 Prohibiting irrigating turf or ornamental landscapes during and 48 hours 


following measurable precipitation. 







Resolution 15-10, Stage I Water Shortage Program Revision  2 
May 7, 2015 
 


 Notifying customers when they are aware of leaks that are within the 
customer’s control. 


 Restaurants and other food service establishments can only serve 
water to customers on request; and 


 Operators of hotels and motels must provide guests with the option of 
choosing not to have towels and linens laundered daily and 
prominently display notice of this option.  


 
WHEREAS, the combination of the District’s Plan and the added State Board required 
restrictions are programs and activities that will help the District and its customers 
achieve a conservation target of 16% based on the 2013 usage; and  
 
WHEREAS, attached as Exhibit A is a list of the programs and activities that will be 
undertaken by the District to assist its customers in achieving water savings under the 
Stage I conservation program and includes the new requirements; and   
 
WHEREAS, certain District customers may need to use water in a way prohibited by the 
Plan restrictions and the State Board Resolution allows for exceptions for health and 
safety reasons; and  
 
WHEREAS, the newest State Board Resolution declares that the emergency resolution 
and regulations shall be in place for 270 unless modified by the State Board.     
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT THAT 
 
1.  District staff shall implement the revised Stage I of the District’s 2010 Urban Water 
Conservation Plan and directs staff to begin implementation the programs and activities 
listed in Exhibit A with a goal of decreasing water production by 16%.  
 
2.  The following water uses are prohibited by the Stage I Plan: 
 


 The application of potable water to any driveway or sidewalk.  
 Using potable water to water outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes runoff 


to adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private and public walkways, roadways, 
parking lots or structures.  


 Using a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor vehicle, unless the 
hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle.  


 Using potable water in a fountain or decorative water feature, unless the water is 
recirculated. Recycled water is not mandated, but encouraged for fountain use. 


 Outside watering of turf and ornamental landscape more than 3 times per week. 
 Irrigating turf or ornamental landscapes during and 48 hours following 


measurable precipitation. 
 Restaurants and other food service establishments can only serve 


water to customers on request; and 
 Operators of hotels and motels must provide guests with the option of 


choosing not to have towels and linens laundered daily and 
prominently display notice of this option 


 







Resolution 15-10, Stage I Water Shortage Program Revision  3 
May 7, 2015 
 
3.  These restrictions may be waived by the General Manager where necessary to 
address an immediate health and safety need or to comply with a term or 
condition in a permit issued by a State or federal agency.  
 
4.  This Stage I Plan and water use restrictions shall be in place until February 1, 2016 
unless other direction is received from the State Board.   
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on May 7, 
2015, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Gaylord Schaap 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 







Resolution 15-10, Stage I Water Shortage Program Revision  4 
May 7, 2015 
 


 
Exhibit A 


Resolution 15-10 
Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Shortage Contingency Plan 


Revised Stage I Water Shortage 
May 7, 2015 


 
Reduction Target is 16%.  According to 2010 Urban Water Management Plan, this is 
Stage 1 of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Triggering Mechanism is State Board Order directing enactment of Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan level that contains mandatory measures, a 16% water use reduction 
by Sweetwater Springs Water District, and requiring certain water use restrictions. 
 
The approach/strategy is voluntary conservation whereby District customers are 
encouraged and offered resources to use water wisely, and to search for and fix leaks 
on their property combined with a limited number of outside watering restrictions.  The 
District will continue with its capital projects aimed at reducing system losses, pay 
attention to water wasting in the District, fix surfacing leaks as quickly as possible, and 
look for other opportunities to reduce system losses. 


 
Plan Elements:  


 Public Education/Information 
o Work with SCWA and other water providers in the region for coordinated 


message 
o Information on website 
o Home Water Audits – self and assisted: 


▪  Instructions on meter reading. 
▪  Check for leaks inside and outside. 
▪  Evaluate all water uses in your facility or home.  
▪  Provide information on rebates, incentive programs, and water 
conservation strategies for residents/businesses. 


o Reduce outside watering of ornamental plants and turf. 
o Office Display with handouts – rebates, low flow showerheads, faucet 


aerators. 
o Water Wise Gardening  
o Media Spots – press releases, PSA’s done on a regional basis 
o Connect with Statewide effort 


 Waste of Water Prohibited, staff will be alerted to be on the lookout for wastage 
of water.  In the approved Stage I Plan and as required by the State, waste of 
water includes: 


o The application of potable water to any driveway or sidewalk.  
o Using potable water to water outdoor landscapes in a manner that 


causes runoff to adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private and 
public walkways, roadways, parking lots or structures.  


o Using a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor vehicle, 
unless the hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle.  


o Using potable water in a fountain or decorative water feature, unless 
the water is recirculated.  


o Outside watering is restricted to 3 times per week. 
o Irrigating turf or ornamental landscapes during and 48 hours 


following measurable precipitation is prohibited. 







Resolution 15-10, Stage I Water Shortage Program Revision  5 
May 7, 2015 
 


o Restaurants and other food service establishments can only 
serve water to customers on request; and 


o Operators of hotels and motels must provide guests with the 
option of choosing not to have towels and linens laundered daily 
and prominently display notice of this option. 


 
 Rate incentives – rates have financial incentive to reduce water use (steep 


incline to tiered rates). 
 District staff will notify customers of possible leaks on their property as soon as 


possible.   
 Capital Improvement Program – 2016 CIP is replacing water distribution mains 


and approximately 75 services on Canyon One Road in Rio Nido starting in June 
2015.   


 District staff fix reported and found leaks on a priority basis, search for leaks 
using correlation equipment, and continue to implement the District effort to 
decrease water losses. 


  
 


 





		Item V-E - Revision of Stage I Water Shortage

		Item V-E.1 - Res 15-10 - Revision of Stage I Water Shortage doc






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 7, 2015 
  
SUBJECT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) REPORT THRU MARCH 
31, 2015 (75%) 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
This report presents the 3rd quarter actual revenues and expenses.  This 
comprises 75% of the year by time and so we compare the revenues and 
expenses to that standard.  It should be noted that the budgeted amounts 
reflect the mid-year budget revisions that were approved in March.  
There are no line items of note in this 3Q report that were not already discussed 
and addressed by the mid-year budget revisions. 
 
Operating Budget: 
 
3Q Revenue is greater than 75% of budgeted amount (as revised by the 
mid-year budget revisions). 
 
In all, the revised budget reduced budgeted revenues by $148,894. 
 
Water Sales, the largest revenue line item, came in at $119,183 more than the 
75% schedule as revised.  (The mid-year budget revision reduced Water Sales 
budgeted amount by $155,894.)  Water Sales is now on track to meet or exceed 
revised budgeted amounts at fiscal year end. 
 
Overall revenues are $134,925 more than budgeted.  In addition to Water Sales, 
this is due to the sale of the Woods Avenue parcel in the 1Q ($16,108).   
 
3Q Expenditures are slightly higher than 75% of budgeted amount.  
 
In all, the revised budget increased budgeted expenses by $116,628. 







Actual vs, Budgeted Thru March 31, 2015 2 
May 7, 2015 


 
As of the 3Q, operating expenditures are 76% of the (revised) budgeted 
amount for the entire year.   
 
For more detail on all the budget line items, including line item mid-year budget 
revisions, please refer to the attached Actual vs. Budgeted breakdown provided 
with your packet. 
 
Capital Budget: 
 
The 3Q Capital Budget (Table 2) is typical for the 3rd Quarter - the annual (2015) 
CIP is completed, some revenues won’t come in until later in the year and 2016 
CIP design expenses have been paid, the award of contract is scheduled for the 
May meeting but construction costs won't come in until the next fiscal year. 
 
Revenue from the annual assessment, and Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
(CDRC) are still coming in; the transfer of the CDRC hasn't happened yet.  
Interest is below budget.          
 
All debt payments have been made.  There will be no General Obligation Bond 
payment this year because of the settlement agreement with USDA.       
 
Net Capital Funding is well below budget largely because the annual 
assessment is still coming from the County, also some CDRC will come in.   
 
FUNDS AT THE COUNTY 
 
Table 3. Fund and Loan Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and 3rd 
Quarter balances.  Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the 3rd Quarter.  
Table 3 includes all the funds listed in the County Fund Balances.   
 
 
 







FY 2014-15 
Actual


2014-15 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.10· Base Rate 1,039,865 1,393,127 -353,262 74.64%
4031.11· Current Charges 440,221 570,000 -129,779 77.23% Mid-year budget revision:  $725,894 to $570,000 *4031.12· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 189,745 253,947 -64,202 74.72%
4031.1 · Other Water Sales Revenue 112,157 0 112,157 100.0%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 1,781,988 2,217,074 -435,086 80.38% This is a cash water sales figure.   


Total OPERATING REVENUE 1,781,988 2,217,074 -435,086 80.38%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE


1700 · Interest 4,852 7,500 -2,648 64.7% Reflects interest earnings thru 3Q *
3600 · Construction New Services 13,562 13,000 562 104.32% Mid-year budget revision:  $5,000 to $13,000 *
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 1,579 1,000 579 157.89%


4032 · Rent 59,916 88,350 -28,434 67.82%   


4227 · SCWA reimbursement 2,495 2,500 -5 99.79%  


4040 · Miscellaneous Income 18,726 1,500 17,226 1,248.37%
In the 1Q, proceeds from the sale of 14335 Woods 
Ave. (to Jardine) were placed here ($16,108)


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 101,130 113,850 -12,720 88.83%


Total Income 1,883,118 2,330,924 -447,806 80.79%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages
546,083 716,000 -169,917 76.27% Mid-year budget revision:  $697,038 to $716,000 *


5912 · Overtime 18,336 30,562 -12,226 60.0%   
5916 · On-Call Pay 24,480 33,090 -8,610 73.98%


5918 · Extra help - Contract 27,871 34,100 -6,229 81.73%  
Total Salary 616,770 813,752 -196,982 75.79%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monies p 2,199 2,199 100.0%
5920 · Retirement 91,349 121,115 -29,766 75.42%
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 11,999 14,067 -2,068 85.3%


5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 106,651 143,249 -36,598 74.45%   
5931 · Retiree Health 6,821 7,000 -179 97.44% In the 1Q $3,334.01 was was paid to CERBT


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 16,939 18,000 -1,061 94.11%
In the 1Q, expenses include pymt for the FY 2013-14 
audit and FY 2014-15 payments thru the 2Q.  As of 
the 3Q, workers comp has been paid for the year. *


Total Benefits 235,959 303,431 -67,472 77.76%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 852,729 1,117,183 -264,454 76.33%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2014-15 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2015 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 5







FY 2014-15 
Actual


2014-15 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2014-15 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2015 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6040-I · Internet service 1,438 1,800 -362 79.89%
6040-C · Cell Phones 3,610 4,300 -690 83.95%
6040-P · Pagers & Radios 547 560 -13 97.76%
6040-T · Telephones 14,686 19,950 -5,264 73.62%


Total Communications 20,281 26,610 -6,329 76.22%


Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 27,632 27,000 632 102.34% (In the 1Q, paid for the year)


6102 · Auto/Equipment 4,105 5,200 -1,095 78.94%
Total Insurances 31,737 32,200 -463 98.56%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 18,053 22,000 -3,947 82.06%
In the 1Q, $3,628 was spent on backhoe repairs. Mid-
year budget revision:  $14,000 to $22,000 for 
backhoe and dumptruck repairs *


6151 · Office Maintenance 5,545 4,050 1,495 136.92%


 


 
Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 23,598 26,050 -2,452 90.59%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 5,808 8,000 -2,192 72.6%


6100 · SCADA system 15,683 35,000 -19,317 44.81%
 Mid-year budget revision:  $5,000 to $35,000 for 
SCADA software upgrades *


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 16,288 24,000 -7,712 67.87%  


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 93,212 103,000 -9,788 90.5%


In the 1Q, unbudgeted expenses totalling over 
$14,000 were spent on a Well 5 rehab.  (Well 4 was 
budgeted for rehab this year.)  In addition, problems 
have now been identified at  Well 6.  It is likely that 
this line item will be overbudget this year.  Mid-year 
budget revision: $42,000 to $103,000


*


6143 · Generator Maintenance 2,810 3,200 -390 87.81%


 
 


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 133,801 173,200 -39,399 77.25%


Miscellaneous Expenses


6280 · Memberships 9,486 9,700 -214 97.8%  


6303 · Claims
1,939 1,500 439 129.24%


  
6593 · Governmental Fees 15,303 20,500 -5,197 74.65%


1Q expense includes water system fees, paid twice 
yearlyr, and annual LAFCO costs.  


Total Miscellaneous Expenses 26,728 31,700 -4,972 84.32%


Office Expense


6410 · Postage
13,479 16,000 -2,521 84.24%


  
6430 · Printing Expense 4,359 7,500 -3,141 58.13%   
6461 · Office Supplies 3,732 4,000 -268 93.3%  


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 893 800 93 111.57%


6890 · Computers/Software 2,732 700 2,032 390.36%


In the1Q, the computer server and SM's workstation 
wre replaced as they were both still running on XP 
Pro, no longer supported by Micrsoft.  This was an 
unbudgeted expense of $2,597.22


 


 Page 2 of 5







FY 2014-15 
Actual


2014-15 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2014-15 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2015 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6579 · Furniture 0 500 -500 0.0%
Total Office Expense 25,195 29,500 -4,305 85.41%


Operating Supplies  


6300 · Chemicals 15,584 17,000 -1,416 91.67% In the 1Q, some chemicals were purchased for the 
year.


6880 · Tools and Equipment 2,570 6,500 -3,930 39.54%  


6881 · Safety Equipment 876 1,000 -124 87.57%
Total Operating Supplies 19,029 24,500 -5,471 77.67%


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 1,719 3,400 -1,681 50.56%  


6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 10,079 15,000 -4,921 67.19%  


6570 · Consultant Fees 15,065 14,966 99 100.66%
1Q expense is the annual fee for labor negotiator.  
Mid-year budget revision: $3,300 to $14,966 to reflect
higher labor negotiator costs. *


6610 · Legal 11,789 20,000 -8,211 58.95%  


6630 · Audit/Accounting 26,096 29,600 -3,504 88.16%  


Total Professional Services 64,748 82,966 -18,218 78.04%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 1,010 2,000 -990 50.5%  


6840 · Building & Warehouse 22,905 27,675 -4,770 82.76% 1Q Bldg. rent paid thru October.


Total Rents & Leases 23,915 29,675 -5,760 80.59%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 2,409 2,800 -391 86.02%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 14,329 25,000 -10,671 57.32%
7300 · Travel Reimbursements 4,203 6,400 -2,197 65.68%


Total Transportation & Travel 20,942 34,200 -13,258 61.23%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 820 1,500 -680 54.67%


6021.3 · T-shirts 1,314 1,500 -186 87.57% 1Q expense includes T-shirts, purchased once yearly


6021.4 · Jackets 0 240 -240 0.0%
Total Uniforms 2,134 3,240 -1,106 65.85%


Utilities


7320 · Electricity 65,331 100,000 -34,669 65.33%  


7321 · Propane 1,497 4,000 -2,503 37.44%  


Total Utilities 66,829 104,000 -37,171 64.26%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 458,936 597,841 -138,905 76.77%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,311,665 1,715,024 -403,359 76.48%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 4,063 9,000 -4,937 45.15% Mid-year budget revision: $22,000 to $9,000 *
8511.2 - Leasehold Improvements 0  0 0 0.0%  


8517 · Field/office equipment 0 0 0 0.0%  


8573 · Vehicles 35,656 50,000 -14,344 71.31%  


 Page 3 of 5







FY 2014-15 
Actual


2014-15 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2014-15 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2015 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 39,719 59,000 -19,281 67.32%


Total Expense 1,351,384 1,774,024 -422,641 76.18%


Net Ordinary Income 531,734 556,900 -25,166 95.48%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue
0 253,947 -253,947 0.0%


  
8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 260,000 260,000 0 100.0% Mid-year budget revision: $500,000 to $260,000 *
8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000 0 100.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
300,000 553,947 -253,947 54.16%


  


 Page 4 of 5







Water Sales


Base Current CDR


Oct $120,214.89 $79,799.60 $21,865.58


Nov $105,494.33 $44,382.70 $19,278.19


Dec $119,855.42 $51,917.20 $21,799.79


TOTAL $345,564.64 $176,099.50 $62,943.56


July $105,543.52 $62,759.60
August $119,815.28 $71,367.00
Sept $105,351.55 $60,696.35


$330,710.35 $194,822.95


$676,274.99 $370,922.45







1  Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District


FY 2014-15 Capital Program Budget Variances as of March 31, 2015 (75%)


FY 14-15
ACTUAL 


(3Q)
FY 14-15
BUDGET


$ Over 
Budget for 


Year
% of 


Budget Comments


REVENUE


Annual Assessment - New Services 42,154 27,000 15,154 156.1%


Annual Assessment (County) 401,281 710,000 -308,719 56.5% More will be coming in


Prior Year Assessment 29,972 40,000 -10,028 74.9%


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 0 253,947 -253,947 0.0% Transfer will happen


Interest 9,155 25,000 -15,845 36.6%


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 260,000 260,000 0 100.0%


25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


 695,000
Cost of CIP above revenue (could be deficit in 
Surplus/Deficit below). 


TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE 767,562 2,035,947 -1,268,385 37.7%


EXPENSES   


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 0 0 0
No payment this year because of bond 
reissuance


Cap One Revenue Bond 566,508 566,508 0 NA both payments made


Total Bond Payments 566,508 566,508 0 100.0%


State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300 -128 99.9% both payments made


Private Placement Loan 234,013 234,014 -1 100.0% both payments made


Total Debt Payments 970,693 970,822 -129 100.0% Sum of all debt payments


2014 CIP 1,234 0 1,234


2015 CIP 894,280 1,037,346 -143,066 86.2% Project is completed


2016 CIP 34,694 975,000 -940,307 3.6% Award of contract at May meeting


In-House Construction Projects 9,076 25,000 -15,924 36.3%


Mapping Project 14,811 0 14,811


TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 1,924,788 3,008,168 -1,083,380 64.0%


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 1,157,226  -972,221 2,129,447 -119.0%


Net Capital Funding 43,603 348,077 -304,474 12.5%


=Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + 
Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments (FY15 
only); need assessment payment from 
County


Funds from Reserves


Transfers to In-House Constr. from 
Operations







FY 14-15


Actual3Q


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 239,887 257,254 (17,367.10)   
corresponds to 
Operations (0100)


Operating Reserve (25% of Operating Exp) 428,756 428,756 -               
corresponds to 
Operating Reserve 0300)


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt) 260,829 242,706 18,123.25    


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
1100)


Capital Reserve 250,000 250,000 -               


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
(1100)


Total District Policy 1,179,472 1,178,716 756            
TOTAL Reserves 2,931,657 2,594,683 336,974     


Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,752,185 1,415,968 336,217


Difference between Total 
and Policy Reserves


DISTRICT FUNDS
CIRF (7106-0600) 416,403         97,033       319,370
OPERATIONS (0100) 498,218      257,254     240,964
OPERATING RESERVE (0300) 399,812         428,756     -28,944
CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY RESERVE 
(1100) 510,829      492,706     18,123
IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION (0500) 132,702         118,106     14,596
BUILDING (0200) 165,850      165,850     0
CAP ONE BOND AND CITIZENS BANK 
LOAN (1200) 804,505      800,522     3,983
FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS (0400) -                64,284       -64,284
STATE LOANS (0700, 0900) 3,338              170,172 -166,834


STATE LOANS RESERVES (0800,1000)
171,370         


171,370     0


Restricted to last payment for 
State Loans; not included in 
Total Reserves


2,931,657   2,594,683  336,974


DISTRICT RESERVES AND FUND BALANCES (3Q)
District Policy Reserves


Total Funds Available 


Table 3.  FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (3Q)
14-15 Budget 


(Revised)
Difference 


Actual-FY15 Comments







SERVES AND FUND BALANCES (EOY)


STRICT RESERVES  


239,887             


399,812             


260,829             


Capital Reserve 250,000             


otal District Policy 1,150,528           


OTAL Reserves EOY 2,888,057           


Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,737,530           


ACCRUAL TOTAL Reserves EOY 3,763,057           


Accrual Reserves Above (below) Policy 2,612,530           


STRICT FUNDS
CIRF (776401, new 76757) 1,144,195           


OPERATING RESERVE (776039 405,942             


OPERATIONS (776013) 244,790             


118,106             


BUILDING (776021) 165,850             


LOANS AND BONDS (776203) 639,003          


STATE LOANS (776500&776609) 170,172          


171,370        


STATE LOANS RESERVES 
(776518&776617)


Operating Budget Cash Reserve (15% of 
Operating Expenses
Operating Reserve (25% of Operating 
Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt)


IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION (776211)







 


Table 4.  County Balances FY 2014-15
 


$15,296.65 $323,402.68 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $116,778.72 $1,132,004.01 $ 24,953.19 $24,750.00 $148,556.90 $146,619.86 $511,305.56 $795,000.00 $3,854,773.92


NAME


CERBT
Operations + 


15% Cash 
Policy Reserve


Bldg Fund
Operating 


Policy 
Reserve (25%)


Federal Loan 
(GO Bonds)


In-house 
Construction


Capital 
Improvements


State Loan 
#58330


State Loan 
#58830


Final Pymt


State Loan 
58340


State Loan 
58340 


Final Pymt


Capital and Debt 
Policy Reserve


Cap One Bonds 
and Citizens 


Bank Loan Debt


Fund  76751 76752 76753 76754 76755 76756 76757 76758 76759 76760 76761 76762


Dep't  


7106


0100
7106


0200
7106


0300
7106


0400
7106


0500
7106


0600
7106


0700
7106


0800
7106


0900
7106


1000
7106


1100
7106


1200


FP1-Jul $15,296.65 $323,402.68 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $116,778.72 $1,124,193.31 $24,953.19 $24,750.00 $148,556.90 $146,619.86 $511,305.56 $677,993.40 $3,729,956.62


FP2-Aug $15,296.65 ($112,551.32) $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $116,778.72 $1,129,169.31 $24,953.19 $24,750.00 $148,556.90 $146,619.86 $511,305.56 $677,993.40 $3,298,978.62


FP3-Sept $18,172.41* $323,402.68 ($285,104.00) $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $115,770.45 $982,701.11 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $511,305.56 $677,993.40 $3,066,416.17


FP4-Oct $18,349.70 $514,494.81 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $112,712.65 $816,902.52 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $512,041.47 $242,039.40 $3,089,387.82


FP5-Nov $18,349.70 $564,494.81 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $111,676.16 $659,247.52 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $512,041.47 $242,039.40 $2,980,696.33


FP6-Dec $18,342.92 $654,494.81 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $110,611.16 $835,553.28 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $512,041.47 $242,039.40 $3,245,937.09


FP7-Jan $18,342.92 $656,089.67 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $108,942.97 $837,565.71 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $512,769.21 $125,032.80 $3,131,597.33


FP8-Feb $18,342.92 $656,089.67 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $108,770.19 $759,956.53 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $512,769.21 ($5,521.20) $2,923,261.37


FP9-Mar $18,791.07 $498,217.61 $165,850.00 $399,812.00 $0.00 $132,702.31 $416,403.04 $1,399.25 $24,750.00 $1,938.88 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $804,505.30 $3,103,027.25


FP10-Apr $0.00


FP11-May $0.00


FP12-Jun $0.00


FP 13 
(FINAL)


$0.00


Beginning balances:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from Cash until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as "Vendors Payable")


*FY 2014-15 CERBT Contributions: $3,334.01
Cumulative CERBT Contributions: $17,834.01


 





		Item V-F Actual v Budgeted - 3Q 2014-15

		Item V-F.1 - Budget variances as of 3-31-2015 (75%)

		Sheet1

		Water Sales breakdown



		Item V-F.2 - Capital Budget variances as of 03-31-2015 (75%)

		Table 2. FY14Q3



		Item V-F.3 - Fund and Loan Balances as of 3-31-2015 (75%)

		Table 3

		Sheet1



		Item V-F.4 - County Acctg Indices

		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: May 7, 2015  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in March were16,636 units (38.2 AF, 


Guerneville cycle) and production was 54.1 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales were  
lower and production slightly higher (39.1 AF and 53.8 AF, respectively).  The water lost 
percentage increased to 23.5, the Guerneville system still appears to going in the wrong 
direction (but we'll talk about the search for leaks elsewhere.   The reduction from March 
2013, the State Board standard, was only 5.2%  - we'll have to do better.         


 
3. Leaks:  In March we had 10 total leaks and spent 47 man-hours on them.   Those are 


more leaks and similar man-hours compared to the prior month and slightly more of both 
compared to March one year ago (9 leaks, 45 man-hours).  Figure 2 shows service and 
main leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.     


 
  The District is moving forward with purchasing a leak correlator which is a device that 


measures sound waves between two points in a pipe to determine the existence of a leak 
and its location.  During the week of April 20th, the District staff tried out a rental unit and 
discovered 3 leaks.  The device is easy to use; 5 staff were self-trained on its use.  Given 
the District's ongoing water losses, the importance of reducing those losses at all times, 
and especially during this era of mandated water use reductions, and the high number of 
surfacing leaks, this appears to be a smart investment (approximately $10,000 including a 
field capable laptop computer) for the District.   


 
4. Guerneville Rainfall. April was better than March but not good enough - a little over 2 


inches - still looking similar to 2013 and than 2014.  Lake Mendocino continues in the 
average range for this time of year; the Sonoma County Water Agency has applied for a 
Temporary Urgency Change, so River flows will be similar to last year.   We are ok for the 
summer but a nice spring storm would help out.              


 
5. 2016 CIP:   The award of the construction contract for the 2016 CIP is on the agenda.   


The CIP Subcommittee has met once since the last Board meeting and we plan to have the 
results of the Subcommittee on the June Board agenda.   


   







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
May 7, 2015 
 


6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   No toilet rebates were approved in April.  The 
direct install program is available for Guerneville sewer customers and will become available 
again for Monte Rio customers when grant money reportedly awarded to the Sonoma 
County Water Agency is handed over - supposed to happen in May.  


 
7. In-House Construction Projects:  Six in-house construction projects were reported in 


April: construction new service on Glandy Glen (22 man-hours),  looped system created on 
Orchard Road (182.5 man-hours), service upgrade on River Rd (21 hours), replaced service 
line/saddle and raide meter for County bridge replacement on Moscow Rd (46 man-hours), 
replaced siding installed new gutters on chem building at Highland Treatment Plant (42.5 
man-hours), and fixed customer leak that may be been caused by repair of District lean on 
River Rd (34 man-hours) .   


 
8. ADA Water Rates:  I expect to have this on the June meeting agenda.   
 
9. Drought Outreach: I gave presentations on the drought to both local Chambers on April 


21.   
  
10. Gantt Chart:   The Gantt Chart for May has approval of the FY16 Budget and award of 


contract for the 2016 CIP  - both are on the agenda.        


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2008 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
if


fe
re


n
ce


 (
%


)


Sales


Production


%Difference







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
May 7, 2015 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


Jan-
13


May-
13


Sep-
13


Jan-
14


May-
14


Sep-
14


Jan-
15


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 
 
 Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


60


70


0


10


20


30


40


50


Octo
be


r


Nove
m


be
r


Dece
m


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
ru


ar
y


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


c
ip


it
a
ti
o


n
 (
in


)


 
 
 GV 2009


Guerneville Avg 
GV 2011 
2013


Dryest (1977)


2014


2015


-


 
 
 







 
Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 FY17+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2016 CIP Design


        2016 CIP Award of Contract


        2016 CIP Construction Starts


        2017 CIP Design


        2017 CIP Award of Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Jul-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest ??


Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal July-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: May 7, 2015 



